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1 Introduction  
 The Project Charter is the document that communicates basic information about a new project or the next phase of an existing project (if applicable) and authorizes the Project Manager to expend resources toward the completion of the project’s objectives. 

The Charter is a means to share the vision with others to achieve consensus between all the key players. The Charter should have a formal approval and coordination process. Typically the Charter has a signature page to obtain approval from the project manager and sponsor and, in some cases, other critical stakeholders. 

The Charter is a living document and can be updated any time during the project life cycle. Such updates would not be expected unless there was a major change in the project direction or completion of a major project phase. Changes could be the result of external influences such as the creation of new state legislation or federal policy, or the result of internal changes such as the adoption of a new technology.

1.1 Purpose

The specific question that the purpose statement attempts to answer is "Why are we doing this project?”  As part of the Project Charter, it is the first element that announces why this project is being undertaken. The purpose statement is of paramount importance, especially when significant amounts of time and money are involved. Understanding the purpose allows the project team to make more informed recommendations and decisions throughout the project. There are many "whys" in the context of a project, however, the Project Charter does not attempt to answer all of them

The purpose of the Project Charter describes expected outcomes, and a high-level approach to the project. The charter is used to confirm expectations with the sponsor and stakeholders and to formally authorize the project. 
This charter identifies the project vision, scope, and participants. It establishes participant roles, relationships, and responsibilities for decision-making, approvals, and issue resolution and escalation. The Project Charter is used as the basis to create the Project Management Plan, and contains vital information about the project and its leadership. 
1.2 Acronyms

List only acronyms that are applicable to this document.  Projects may add additional acronyms as needed.

	CMAS

MSA

IAA
	Californian Master Agreement Schedules

Master Services Agreement

Interagency Agreement

	OSI
	Office of Systems Integration 

	R&Rs
	Roles and Responsibilities

	RFP
	Request for Proposal

	SOW
	Statement of Work


2 Background
2.1 Business Problem

Describe the business problem that needs to be solved, or if this project is to enhance an organization, describe the business opportunity. 

If the charter is for a support organization (such as for an organization providing support or oversight of another project office), this section should be modified to describe the business environment and the reason the support organization was created. 

2.2 Project Background 

Describe the events leading up to this project including laws, regulations, and rationale for proceeding. If there are dependent or related projects indicate what these are. 

3 System Concept

3.1 Project Goal Statement

The statement should be short and to the point. It should not contain language or terminology that might not be understood. Example:  

“The primary goal of the <Project Name> is to acquire software that enables the counties, consortia, and the State to meet the information integration needs of the welfare process.”

If the charter is for a support organization (such as for an organization providing support or oversight of another project office), this section may be omitted or may contain a vision statement for the organization. 

3.2 Project Objectives Statements

Provide a brief, concise list of what the project will do to accomplish the goal(s). Example:

“To meet the project goal to acquire middleware that enables the counties, consortia and the State to meet the information integration needs of the welfare process in California, the project objectives are:

· Provide inter-county transfer of welfare-related data in a timely and accurate manner.
· Meet the legislative requirements of the federal Welfare Reform mandate. 

· Provide a communications mechanism that is transparent and seamless among all stakeholders”.
3.3 Project Scope

Describe the project boundaries. What is in? What is out? The project scope must be defined as clearly and discretely as practical. The current project budget may also be used to describe the scope of the system. Example:

“The <insert project name> Project will be divided into two phases: Phase 1 addresses system solicitation and Phase II addresses the system development. Phase 1, Solicitation, involves the activities to define the system requirements, issue an Invitation to Partner, evaluate proposals, and select a Prime Contractor. Phase II, Development, involves the activities to oversee the Prime Contractor as they develop and implement the proposed system. This Charter and the subsequent products will address only Phase I.

The requirements defined in the Invitation to Partner must address the data integration needs of State welfare and will include health data integration to the extent that they are included in welfare data integration needs. It will include the data integration needs of:

· Agency Stakeholder

· No-Governmental Stakeholder
· Departmental Stakeholder
· User Representative Stakeholder
· Sponsor Stakeholder
· Other stakeholders  
3.4 System Concept
Provide a high-level description of the system concept. List the major features or user capabilities the new system will provide. Example:

“The <insert project name> Project will develop the Middleware Communications Component that will integrate the consortia applications. The Communications Component is intended to route data among consortia systems. The following figure illustrates the high-level logical business processes to be developed during the Project.

The project focuses on supporting the following business functions:

· Client and case transfer between counties.
· Providing county data for required State and Federal reports.
· Information gathering for fraud detection and other decision-making activities.
· Determining whether a client is known to the State, and specifically known to the State’s welfare system.
· Assigning a new statewide client identifier, if the client does not already have one.
If the charter is for a support organization (such as for an organization providing support or oversight of another project office), this section should be retitled to “Completion Criteria” and indicate the factors which signal completion of the organization’s mission or when the organization will sunset. 

3.5 Critical Success Factors

List factors that must be present for the project to succeed. Note that these are not the specific criteria that will be used to measure project success or failure, but instead are the things the project requires in order to be successful (i.e., dependencies). Example:

“The following are the critical success factors of the <insert project name> Project Phase I (Solicitation):

· State senior management support for the project effort.

· Use of an experienced project management team using proven life cycle processes.

· Input to, and acceptance of, the system by <Sponsor>, <oversight stakeholder>, and county stakeholders. 

· Participation from the welfare consortia representatives who can represent their county constituents to this project and speak for them with knowledge and authority.”

4 Project Approach

4.1 Acquisition Approach

Describe how the acquisition/procurement/development/implementation will be conducted (at least as is currently known). 

· What is being acquired (part or all of the solution)? If just part of the solution is being acquired or if there are several separate procurements for different parts, who is responsible for integrating the parts? 

· Will the project be conducted in-house or by a vendor(s)? 

· Will there be multiple pieces to the procurement? 

· Will CMAS/MSA be used, or an open bid procurement?

· Will the procurement be delegated or non-delegated?

· Is this an alternative procurement or traditional?

· Who makes the final decision to award a contract?

· Who makes the final decision to accept the system? 

· Are Federal approvals or certifications required?

If the charter is for a support organization (such as for an organization providing support or oversight of another project office), this section should be modified to describe the various functions or services the organization will provide. 

“To meet the project goal to acquire middleware that enables the counties, consortia and the State to meet the information integration needs of the welfare process in California, the Project, Phase I (Solicitation) will:

· Determine the System Requirements for Middleware Communications Component.
· Determine the usability of the Technical Architecture Information Broker, design and requirements specifications for Middleware Communications Component.
· Assess the usability and alternative approaches using commercial middleware products for Middleware.
· Define an acquisition strategy and issue an Invitation to Partner. 

· Select and contract with an integration vendor for Middleware.”

4.2 Key Project Work Products

List the expected major project work products, such as project management plans, a Request for Proposal (RFP), etc. 

Do not list deliverables expected of the prime contractor or other consultants/contractors. These items will be described in the RFP, Statement of Work (SOW), and contract.

4.3 Project Milestones

List the major milestones for the project. In many cases, it may only be possible to estimate milestones for the first few phases (Planning and Procurement). Further milestones may be added/updated in later charter updates or contained and updated in the project master schedule. Example:

Project Phase I (Planning and Procurement):

Staffing Complete – xx/xx/xxxx

Plans/Processes Approved xx/xx/xxxx

Requirements Approved by Stakeholders – xx/xx/xxxx

RFI Released to Bidding Community – xx/xx/xxxx

RFP Released to Bidding Community – xx/xx/xxxx

Draft Proposals Due – xx/xx/xxxx

Final Proposals Due – xx/xx/xxxx

Final Selection – xx/xx/xxxx 

Contract Award – xx/xx/xxxx

Acceptance Test Signoff – xx/xx/xxxx

Implementation Complete – xx/xx/xxxx

4.4 Assumptions and Constraints

List any known assumptions or constraints. Some items may be obtained from the Project Concept Statement. List the key items and/or reference a longer list maintained separately. These assumptions and constraints should be analyzed and validated periodically as the project moves forward. Typical assumptions and constraints include fixed cost for the project and mandated schedules due to legislation. It is important to describe assumptions and constraints, as they will influence the planning process in subsequent activities.

· Assumptions are factors that, for planning purposes, are considered to be true, real or certain. 

· Assumptions affect all aspects of project planning and are part of the progressive elaboration of the project. 

· Assumptions generally involve a degree of risk. 

· Constraints are restrictions that could affect the performance of the project.

· Constraints limit resources, schedule, or scope, and could affect the quality of the project/product.

The Triple Constraint Flexibility Matrix (see Figure X) depicts the constraints within the project. It is intended to articulate the level of flexibility of the elements of the Triple Constraint. There should be only one constraint for each flexibility level. Therefore, if any flexibility level changes, at least one other flexibility level must change. This information provides guidance on the Project Sponsor’s level of flexibility in these areas when determining trade-offs in project planning. It is important for the Project Sponsor to specify the flexibility of these constraints in relation to each other. 

Figure X

Triple Constraint Flexibility Matrix

	Flexibility
	Least
	Somewhat
	Most

	Resources
	
	
	

	Schedule
	
	
	

	Scope
	
	
	


4.5 Project Impacts

Discuss impacts the projects may have on the existing business processes, technology, organization, and customer. This discussion is based on the best information available at the time the Project Charter is created. 

For business processes, estimate how business processes will change and affect the staff. For example, the most obvious change is that something that was done manually will now be automated. Estimate the business process re-engineering effort required to define new processes, identify new job skills, and train staff. 

For technology, describe the impact of changes in technology or the insertion of new technology. For example, if the proposed solution uses a web-based application for entering form data, the application may be easy to roll out to individual desktops across the state, but may require an upgrade and additional maintenance to the network infrastructure. If the technology is relatively new or may be unfamiliar to most readers, provide a general description along with its impact. 

Identify any changes to the organization required by the proposed solution. The new system may require an organizational restructure. The new system may require new positions. For example, most new systems require the establishment of a help desk.

Identify impacts to customers. For example, if a proposed information system provides integration with national databases, then the customer may have timely access to data from other states and federal repositories that they did not previously have. Also, indicate if the customer impacts are different from the user impacts. 
4.6 Successful Completion Criteria

List the criteria for determining successful project completion. The criteria should be unambiguous, observable and traceable back to the project goals and objectives. Example:

“The following are the successful completion criteria of the Middleware Project Phase I (Note that additional criteria will apply after completion of the solicitation phase):

· Production of a clear, realizable, and complete baseline for business, functional and technical requirements.

· Acquisition of a vendor with the skill, motivation, resources and time to develop a middleware solution that meets stakeholders’ needs within budget and time constraints.

· Successful award of the project to a vendor within the time and costs outlined in the Project Management Plan.

· Traceable project artifacts that meet recognized industry standards for Systems and Software Projects. “ 

5 Organization  
5.1 Project Organization  

Show the project organization in terms of chain of command (organization hierarchy). Also show relationships to key stakeholders and customers. Show names of the key managers, if available. More detailed organizational depictions and roles and responsibilities will be contained in the Staff Management Plan. 

[image: image1]
Figure 1. Sample Organizational Chart

5.2 Project Authority and Oversight

Based on the project’s complexity, many difficult decisions might be made to keep the project on track. For this reason the Project Charter defines the authority and mechanisms to resolve potential problems. The following areas must be addressed. 

Project Manager

This is the person who is given authority to plan, execute, monitor and control the project. 

Project Sponsor

This is the person who makes the business argument for the project to exist; who usually secures and controls the overall funding of the project; and who secures other necessary resources.

Project Oversight

The Project Charter establishes the level of project oversight and project management rigor the Project Manager must apply to the project. The level of oversight should include reference to the roles of internal, external, and independent oversight organizations.

Controls

Finally, the Project Charter describes the interactions between internal and external controls. This establishes a relationship between the project and senior management to ensure that a support mechanism exists to resolve issues outside the authority of the Project Manager.

The Project Charter then becomes an agreement between senior management and the Project Manager; both having duties and obligations to the project. The Project Charter has a signature page, which is signed by all appropriate parties.

5.3 Roles and Responsibilities  

This section discusses the overall structure of the project organization and discusses, at a high level, the responsibilities of the Project Sponsor, Project Manager, and team, including oversight organizations. It also includes the responsibilities of the Program Project Manager, where applicable. Summarize the high-level roles and responsibilities for the key organizations. More detailed roles will be described in the project’s Governance Plan and Staff Management Plan. The R&Rs described here should be taken from, or be compatible with, the Interagency Agreement (IAA). 

This section primarily should address authority and decision-making. Who approves funding? Who reviews and/or approves work products? Are there required federal pre-approvals for certain items? Example:

“The following are the high-level roles and responsibilities for the organizations supporting the project. More detailed roles will be described in the project’s Governance Plan.

  Office of Systems Integration (OSI) is responsible for …

Project Sponsor is responsible for …”
The following are the high-level roles and responsibilities for the organizations supporting the project. More detailed roles will be described in the project’s Governance Plan. 

· OSI: Project Office Team   

 “The OSI has project management oversight for the project office and is responsible for all aspects of the project related to project management, information technology, and contract management, including:

· Monitoring milestones, activities, timelines, resources, budgets and critical path.
· Implementation and operations.
· Contract management and monitoring of contract deliverables.
· Coordination and facilitation of statewide implementation in the counties.
The OSI is responsible for oversight of county interface planning and development, business process reengineering, and implementation planning and execution.

The OSI is responsible for coordination of efforts between the prime contractor, the state project office, and the California Welfare Directors. “

· < Organization Name >: Project Sponsor  
“The < Organization Name > is the Executive Sponsor for the project. The <Organization Name > sets the program vision and policy, interprets federal policy and regulations, and develops state regulations pertaining to the programs to be included in the project. As such, < Organization Name > is responsible for ensuring program requirements are clearly communicated, so that they will be effectively incorporated into and supported by the system. The < Organization Name > is the point of contact for federal and state agencies and the State Legislature regarding program policy issues. “

· Stakeholders  
List the key stakeholders. If certain stakeholders are actively participating in the project, identify their involvement. 

Example:

“Middleware project primary stakeholders are:

· State Technology Services Stakeholder

· Non-Governmental Organization Stakeholder
· Sponsor Stakeholder
· Project Management Stakeholder
· User Stakeholder
· Oversight Stakeholders
· Federal agency

The following are the key stakeholders for the project. 

· Procurement Oversight Stakeholder
· Fiscal Oversight Stakeholder (Budget)
6 Project Analysis

6.1 Project Priority and Strategic Fit

Describe the project priorities. Typically this is represented in a tradeoff matrix contrasting resources, schedule, and scope as shown in the following table. Place a large ‘X’ in the appropriate column for each item. Example:

Table 1. Project Priority and Strategic Fit

	
	Not Flexible
	Somewhat Flexible
	Most Flexible

	Resources
	Cannot be exceeded
	Willing to exceed original budget by a small amount, only if necessary
	Willing to exceed original budget estimates if necessary

                    X

	Schedule
	Cannot be exceeded

               X
	Willing to exceed original schedule by a small amount, only if necessary
	Willing to exceed original schedule estimates if necessary

	Scope
	Cannot be changed
	Willing to expand/reduce original requirements somewhat, without compromising quality, only if necessary.

X 
	Willing to exceed original requirements without compromising quality, if necessary


In this example, the schedule is the most critical priority. Project scope is somewhat flexible, and resources are the most flexible. Based on this example, the project is indicating that additional resources can be acquired or borrowed if needed to ensure the project remains on schedule. It also implies that scope may be reduced (i.e., functionality delayed or deleted) in order to stay on schedule, or that minor items may be added if the items will not affect the overall schedule. 

In addition, the project priorities should align with the organization strategic plan. Describe how this project aligns with strategic plans for OSI and the Sponsor. Example:

“The Middleware Project is a component of the IT Strategic Plan. It will integrate not only the four data applications, but also will provide access of the central Information System database to other authorized data users.”

6.2 Preliminary Risk Assessment

Identify any risks that are known at the time the charter is created. These will likely be the high-level risks to project success from the Project Concept statement. However, if the project has performed a formal risk identification session already, this assessment summarizes the risks with high exposure and/or those which the stakeholders should understand. On an ongoing basis, risks must be managed and tracked using a risk management repository (e.g., Risk Radar).

This section may be an appendix if desired. 
6.3   Charter Acceptance

This section provides for the identification by name, title, and signature of the individuals agreeing to authorize expenditure of organizational resources to accomplish project activities. At a minimum, the Project Charter must be signed by the Project Manager, the Project Sponsor, and, if applicable, the Executive Sponsor.
_____________________________________

___________________

<Director Name, Director>





Date

<Office of Systems Integration>
_____________________________________

____________________

<Name of Sponsor’s Chief Executive>, <Title>


Date

<Name of Sponsor Organization>


_____________________________________

____________________

<Name of Project Manager>, Project Manager


Date  

Office of Systems Integration   

Appendices
Appendix A: SMALL PROJECT CHARTER FORM

For projects of smaller size and/or short duration the short form project charter document can be used in place of the above. This document contains the same information, but in an abbreviated format.
<Project Name> Project Charter
	PROJECT NAME:

<Project Name>

Sponsor:

Who champions project?

Project Mgr:

Who leads the project?

Charter Version #:

What is this version number?
Updated by: 

Who created this version?

Approved By:

Who approved this version?

Approval Date:

When was it approved?

PROJECT OBJECTIVE STATEMENT:
What must the project do and by when?  Keep this statement short, 25 words or less. Make it SMART (Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Relevant, and Time-based)

PROJECT SCOPE:
IN SCOPE:   
List the business areas and functionality that will be included in this project. 

OUT OF SCOPE:   

List the business areas and functionality that will not be included in this project. 

CUSTOMER BENEFITS:
What customer business requirements does this project address?   Relate these to one of the following: increase revenue, avoid costs, improve service, and/ or comply with a mandate?    (Create a short numbered list of customer benefits.)

PROJECT DELIVERABLES:
What is the project going to produce?  (Create a numbered list of tangible products that will be available as a result of this project.)

SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION CRITERIA:
How will the success of the project be determined from the customer’s perspective?  Make these criteria measurable so there is no doubt as to the project’s success. Create a short numbered list.

PROJECT BACKGROUND:
What is the primary motivation for this project?  Include a brief high level description of the business area, the current situation, the desired situation, and the gaps that exist.

DEPENDENT PROJECTS:
What projects must be underway or completed before this project can be successful?  What projects depend on this one for their successful outcome?  

ASSUMPTIONS AND CONSTRAINTS:
Assumptions:

What assumptions were made in defining the project?  Assumptions can affect scope, schedule, resources, stakeholders, etc. 
Constraints:

Are there constraints to the execution of the project?  Constraints describe boundaries within which the project must operate. 


	SCHEDULE:
Start Date:

When did the project start?

End Date:

When will the project finish?

TRIPLE CONSTRAINT TRADE-OFF:

Resources:
Select a different flexibility letter for each constraint. Use each letter only once:

L  = Least Flexible
S = Somewhat Flexible
M = Most Flexible
Schedule:
Scope:

MAJOR HIGH-LEVEL MILESTONES
Milestone
Planned

Actual

1. What events measure progress?  E.g. Initiation Approved, Analysis Complete, etc.

PROJECT CORE TEAM MEMBERS
Team Member
Role
Who is on the project?

What role do they play?

PROJECT RISKS:
Identify key risk areas based on the preliminary Risk Assessment Questionnaire. Create a short numbered list.

PROJECT BUDGET:
How much money was allocated?

FUNDING SOURCE:
Who is paying for this project?

EQUIPMENT REQUIRED:
List equipment or tools here  

SPONSOR SIGNATURE                             DATE
Sponsor signs here
Insert date












< Name >





DGS Analyst





< Vacant >





DGS Director





< Mgr Name >





XX Company (IV&V)





< Consultant Names >





< Mgr Name >





XX Company (QA)





< Staff  Names >





< Staff  Names >





< Staff  Names >





< Staff  Names >





< Staff  Names >





< Name >





Procurement Mgr





< Name >





Systems Engr Mgr





< Name >





IT Manager





< Name >





Admin Manager





< Name>





xx Program Chief





< Name>





Legal Counsel





< Name >





        Director





< Name >





xxxx Project Manager











                        Division Title











               Director
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